
 
 

 
 
 

TUESDAY, 22 MARCH 2022 
 
 

TO: ALL MEMBERS OF THE CABINET 
 
 
 
I HEREBY SUMMON YOU TO ATTEND A VIRTUAL MEETING OF THE 
CABINET AT 10.00 AM, ON MONDAY, 28TH MARCH, 2022 FOR THE 
TRANSACTION OF THE BUSINESS OUTLINED ON THE ATTACHED 
AGENDA 
 
 

Wendy Walters 

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 

 

Democratic Officer: Julie Owens 

Telephone (direct line): 01267 22403088 

E-Mail: juowens@carmarthenshire.gov.uk 

 

 

Wendy Walters Prif Weithredwr, Chief Executive, 
Neuadd y Sir, Caerfyrddin. SA31 1JP 
County Hall, Carmarthen. SA31 1JP 

 

 

Document Pack



 
 

CABINET 

MEMBERSHIP - 9 MEMBERS 
Councillor Portfolio 

Councillor Emlyn 

Dole 

 

Leader 
Corporate Leadership and Strategy; Chair of Cabinet; Represents Council at 

WLGA; Economic Development Represents the Council on the Swansea Bay 

City Region; Collaboration; Marketing and Media; Appoints Cabinet Members; 

Determines Cabinet Portfolios; Liaises with Chief Executive; Public Service 

Board, Corporate Strategic Planning 

Councillor Ann 

Davies 

 

Communities and Rural Affairs  

Rural Affairs and Community Engagement; Community Safety;  Police; 

Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015; Tackling Poverty; Wellbeing of 

Future Generations; Third Sector Liaison; Equalities, Climate Change 

Strategy 

Councillor Glynog 

Davies 

 

Education and Children 
Schools; Children’s Services; Special Education Needs; Safeguarding; 

Respite Homes; Regional Integrated School; Improvement Service; Adult 

Community Learning; Youth Services; School Catering Services, Lead 

Member for Children and Young People; Youth Ambassador; I.C.T 

Councillor Hazel 

Evans 
 

Environment 
Refuse; Street Cleansing; Highways and Transport Services; Grounds 

Maintenance; Building Services (excluding housing stock); Emergency 

Planning; Flooding, Public Rights of Way, Council Business Manager. 

Councillor Linda 

Evans 
Housing 
Housing – Public; Housing – Private, Housing Maintenance and repairs &  

Ageing Well; Wales Audit; 

Councillor Peter 

Hughes Griffiths 

 

Culture, Sport and Tourism  
Town and Community Councils Ambassador; Development of the Welsh 

Language; Theatres; Sports; Leisure Centres; Museums; Libraries; Country 

Parks; Tourism; T.I.C. (Transformation, Innovation and Change) 

Councillor Philip 

Hughes 

 

Public Protection 
Trading Standards; Environmental Health. Environmental Enforcement; 

Planning enforcement; Unlicensed Waste;  Parking Services; Bio diversity; 

Human Resources; Performance Management;  Training 

Councillor David 

Jenkins 

 

Resources 
Finance & Budget; Corporate Efficiencies; Property/Asset Management; 

Caretaking & Building Cleaning; Procurement; Housing Benefits; Revenues; 

Statutory Services (Coroners, Registrars, Electoral, Lord Lieutenancy); 

Armed Forces Champion Contact Centres and Customer Service Centres; 

Planning Policy 

Councillor Jane 

Tremlett 
 

Deputy Leader / Social Care & Health  
Adult Social Services; Residential Care; Home Care; Learning Disabilities; 

Mental Health; NHS Liaison/Collaboration/ Integration; Care Home Catering 

Services, Carers’ Champion; Dementia Care Champion; Disability 

Ambassador 
 



 
 

 

 

A G E N D A   
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST   

3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE 
MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON THE 14TH MARCH 2022  

5 - 10 

4. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE BY MEMBERS (NONE RECEIVED)   

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON NOTICE (NONE RECEIVED)   

6. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT BY REASONS OF 
SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES THE CHAIR DECIDES SHOULD BE 
CONSIDERED AS A MATTER OF URGENCY PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 100B(4)(B) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT, 1972.  

 

7. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC   

 THE REPORT RELATING TO THE FOLLOWING ITEM IS NOT FOR 
PUBLICATION AS IT CONTAINS EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED 
IN PARAGRAPH 14 OF PART 4 OF SCHEDULE 12A TO THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS AMENDED BY THE LOCAL 
GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) (VARIATION) (WALES) 
ORDER 2007. IF, FOLLOWING THE APPLICATION OF THE PUBLIC 
INTEREST TEST, THE CABINET RESOLVES PURSUANT TO THE ACT 
TO CONSIDER THE ITEM IN PRIVATE, THE PUBLIC WILL BE 
EXCLUDED FROM THE MEETING DURING SUCH CONSIDERATION. 

 

 

8. ASSET PURCHASE - PENDINE SLIPWAY CARPARK AND WINCH 
HOUSE  

11 - 16 

 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 
CABINET 

 
14 MARCH 2022 

 
PRESENT: Councillor E. Dole (Chair) 
 
Councillors:  
C.A. Davies, G. Davies, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, P. Hughes-Griffiths, 
D.M. Jenkins and J. Tremlett. 
 
Also in attendance: 
Councillors D.M. Cundy and R. James 
 
The following Officers were in attendance: 
W. Walters, Chief Executive; 
J. Morgan, Director of Community Services; 
C. Moore, Director of Corporate Services; 
P.R. Thomas, Assistant Chief Executive (People Management & Performance); 
G. Morgans, Director of Education & Children's Services; 
L.R. Jones, Head of Administration and Law; 
A. Williams, Head of Waste and Environmental Services; 
M. Roberts, Policy and Strategy Officer, Environmental and Enforcement; 
L. Morris, Senior Press Officer; 
L. Jenkins, Cabinet Support Officer; 
E. Evans, Principal Democratic Services Officer; 
K. Thomas, Democratic Services Officer; 
S. Rees, Simultaneous Translator; 
J. Owens, Democratic Services Officer (Observer); 
J. Owen, Democratic Services Officer (Minute Taker). 
 
Virtual Meeting:- 10:00am - 10:42am 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
There were no apologies for absence. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF PERSONAL INTEREST 
 

Councillor Minute Number Nature of Interest 

Emlyn Dole 9. 9 - Business Rates - Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rates 
Relief Scheme 2022/23 
 

He owns a hairdressing salon 
and a holiday let 

Hazel Evans 10. 9 - Business Rates - Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rates 
Relief Scheme 2022/23 

11.  

A close member of her family 
has a business in the County. 

Philip Hughes 12. 9 - Business Rates - Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rates 
Relief Scheme 2022/23 

He owns a Bed and Breakfast 
Guest House in the County.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



 

 
 

Jane Tremlett 13. 9 - Business Rates - Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rates 
Relief Scheme 2022/23 

14.  

She has a business within the 
County. 

Linda Evans 15. 9 - Business Rates - Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rates 
Relief Scheme 2022/23 

16.  

A close member of her family 
has a business in the County. 

 
3. TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

CABINET HELD ON THE:- 
 
3.1. 21ST FEBRUARY 2022 
 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on the 21st February, 2022 be signed as a correct record. 

 
3.2. 28TH FEBRUARY 2022 

 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting of the 
Cabinet held on the 28th February, 2022 be signed as a correct record. 

 
4. QUESTIONS ON NOTICE BY MEMBERS 

 
The Chair advised that no questions on notice had been submitted by members. 
 

5. PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON NOTICE 
 
The Chair advised that no public questions had been received. 
 

6. EXTENSION OF PUBLIC SPACE PROTECTION ORDER 
(CARMARTHENSHIRE DOG ORDERS) 
 
The Cabinet received a report in respect of extending the current Public Space 
Protection Order (PSPO) which was due to expire at the end of June for a further 3 
years. 
 
The report stated that subject to a number of exemptions and restrictions, the 
Original Order required that people:- 
 

 Clean up after their dogs on all public land in the County. 

 Put and keep their dog on a lead by direction. 

 Not to take their dog onto or permits their dog to enter or remain on any 
enclosed children’s play areas in the County. 

 
A targeted consultation period on the extension of the PSPO had taken place with 
a number of statutory consultees and other relevant stakeholders, a list of which 
was included within the report.  It was reported that 43 responses had been 
received with 85% of those respondents supporting the extension of the current 
PSPO for a period of 3 years.  

Page 6



 

 
 

 
Cabinet Members noted that a number of respondents had made suggestions 
comments through the consultation exercise and that the comments and 
responses were appended to the report at Appendix 8 of the report as well as a 
comprehensive response from the Kennel Club and Dogs Trust which was also 
appended to the report at appendix 5 & 6 respectively. 
 
The report sought to extend the duration of the 2016 Order whereby a new 
Extension Order would need to be made, a draft order was appended to the report 
at Appendix 2.  It was reported that the Authority, subject to a separate 
consultation, would be able to consider additional controls and conditions to be 
added to the current PSPO in future and that an engagement exercise was 
currently being carried out to seek wider views. 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 

6.1 the duration of the Carmarthenshire County Council (Dog Control) 
Public Spaces Protection Order 2016 be extended for a further period of 
3 years with effect from the 1st July 2022; 

 
6.2 the Council makes an Extension Order to give effect to the above 

extension;  
 

6.3 the 2016 Order with suitable wording to reflect the fact that the duration 
of the 2016 order has been extended be endorsed. 

 
7. COUNCIL'S REVENUE BUDGET MONITORING REPORT 

 

The Cabinet considered the revenue budget monitoring report which provided the 
latest budgetary position as at 31st December 2021, in respect of 2021/2022.  
Whilst the scale of Covid-19 response was reducing, the budget position 
recognised the ongoing financial pressures faced by the Authority as well as the 
additional funding support provided by Welsh Government. 
 
Overall, the monitoring report forecast an underspend for the year at departmental 
level of £3,702k with a forecast underspend on the Authority’s net revenue budget 
of £2,901k.  At a high level, this was due to a combination of: 
 

 additional COVID19 related costs and lost income being largely refunded 
under the Welsh Government hardship scheme; 

 some services still paused or impacted by lockdown measures and social 
distancing during Quarter 1; 

 Utilisation of some capital financing underspends, due to some significant 
pressure points on in-year capital project budgets, which was approved as 
part of a separate report. 

 
Cabinet Members noted that the full year forecast continued to remain sensitive to 
any future worsening of the pandemic, in particular if any reintroduction of public 
restrictions were required. Furthermore, during the first half of the year (April-
September), additional expenditure and income loss totalling approximately £13 
million had been claimed under the Welsh Government hardship scheme. 
 

Page 7



 

 
 

The Housing Revenue Account reported a predicted underspend of £1,826k for 
2021/22, details of which were provided within Appendix B appended to the report. 

UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 

7.1 The Budget Monitoring report be received, and the budgetary position 
and appropriate corrective action taken be noted. 

7.2 Chief Officers and Heads of Service critically review options available 
to them to limit the forecasted overspend of budgets, whilst 
recognising the ongoing impact which Covid-19 measures has placed 
on the Authority’s overall budget. 

8. CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22 UPDATE 
 
The Cabinet received a report which provided the latest budgetary position for the 
2021/22 capital programme, as at the 31st December 2021 and detailed new 
projects for noting and Cabinet approval. 
 
It was reported that departmentally, a net spend of £56,526k was forecast 
compared with a working net budget of £104,923k giving a -£48,397k variance.  
 
The net budget included the original H.R.A. and General Fund capital programmes 
approved by Council on the 3rd March, 2021 and slippage from 2020/21 and 
amendments approved by Cabinet on 25th October, 2021.  It was noted that some 
budgets had also been amended to account for differences in actual grant 
allocations compared with the anticipated allocations at the time the programme 
was approved. 
 
It was noted that Appendix B detailed the main variances within each department. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED that: 
 
8.1 the capital programme update report 2021/22 be received; 
8.2. the new projects as detailed within the report be noted and agreed. 
 

9. BUSINESS RATES - RETAIL, LEISURE AND HOSPITALITY RATES RELIEF 
SCHEME 2022/23 
 
Note: Councillors E. Dole, H.A.L. Evans, L.D. Evans, P.M. Hughes, J. Tremlett 
having earlier declared an interest in this item, repeated their declarations and left 
the meeting throughout the deliberation and voting of this item.] 
 
At this point, as both the Leader and Deputy Leader had left the meeting following 
their Declarations of Interest, the Cabinet UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED to 
appoint Councillor David Jenkins as the temporary Chair for this item. 
 

Page 8



 

 
 

The Cabinet considered a report which provided information on the adoption of a 
rate relief scheme being made available to billing Authorities by Welsh 
Government for 2022/23.  The report recommended that the Cabinet adopt the 
2022/23 Retail Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief scheme as outlined in the 
report. 
 
In response to the Coronavirus emergency in 2020/21, the Welsh Government 
announced that it would introduce the Retail, Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief 
scheme to increase the discount to 100%. This scheme also applied in 2021/22 
and in addition to retail sector it was extended to include leisure and hospitality 
sectors for example shops, pubs and restaurants, gyms, performance venues and 
hotels. 
 
It was reported that for 2022-23 the Welsh Government had confirmed it would 
provide grant funding to all 22 local authorities in Wales to provide the Retail, 
Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief scheme to eligible businesses.  The scheme 
aimed to provide support for eligible occupied properties by offering a discount of 
50% on the non-domestic rates bill for a property, to all eligible premises. 
 
The Welsh Government had provided the types of business that they considered 
appropriate for this relief scheme, as well as those which were not.  The non-
exhaustive list of business types was appended to the report at Appendix A.  
 
Cabinet Members noted that as this was a temporary measure and that the Welsh 
Government would be providing the relief by reimbursing Local Authorities that use 
their discretionary powers under Section 47 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1988, it was appropriate for the scheme to be formally adopted. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED THAT 
 
9.1  the Retail Leisure and Hospitality Rates Relief Scheme be adopted for 

 2022/23; 
 

9.2  the Relief be granted in accordance with the Welsh Government 
 guidelines; 
 

9.3  the applications that are not specifically covered by the guidelines or 
 otherwise require specific consideration, to be determined by the 
 Cabinet Member for Resources. 

 
10. NATIONAL BOTANIC GARDEN OF WALES 

 
[Note: From this point, Councillor Emlyn Dole Chaired the remainder of business. 
 
The Cabinet considered a report which provided information in respect of the 
existing loan / lease arrangements, which came to an end on 30 September 2021.  
The report sought the Cabinet approval to extend the arrangements by a further 6 
months on the same conditions as existing agreements whilst the National 
Botanical Gardens finalised the structure for the repayment of the loan. 

Page 9



 

 
 

 
The Cabinet noted that the County Council’s had a long history in support for the 
Garden since the project’s inception in the 1990’s.  The report provided a list of 
previous resolutions dating back to 2005 in respect of the financial support 
including the Welsh Government and the Millennium Commission in securing a 
viable and long-term future for the Garden and was relevant to today’s ongoing 
discussions. 
 
It was reported that the Gardens in 2020, had engaged dialogue with Welsh 
Government in respect of finding a sustainable solution to the ongoing long-term 
future of the Gardens. This dialogue had continued throughout the current period 
of the loan and was still ongoing, although it had been delayed due to 
accommodate for the Covid response priorities. 
 
The Loan Agreement, originally signed in 2005, included an additional Conditional 
option agreement which provided for the farmhouses known as Gorswen, Alltgoch, 
Pantwgan and Bryncrwys to be transferred (freehold) to the National Botanic 
Garden of Wales, subject to the repayment of the whole of the loan.  Furthermore, 
in order for the Garden to further develop, the National Botanic Garden of Wales 
and the Welsh Government were keen to obtain the freehold interest of the 
farmhouses.  It was reported that total loan currently stood at £1,350,000 and was 
currently interest free. 
 
It was reported that by way of a support package from the Welsh Government, it 
was likely that the Gardens would be in a position to repay the loan to the County 
Council in full by the 31st March 2022.   
 
The report proposed that the Cabinet formally extend the loan to the 31st March 
2022, in order to activate the option agreement. 
 
Cabinet members raised that they were in support of further development of the 
Garden. 
 
UNANIMOUSLY RESOLVED 
 
10.1 to extend the Authority’s interest free loan to the Garden for a further 

6 months to 31st March 2022 (including the option agreement on the 
farmhouse); 
 

10.2. to allow the Garden to continued occupation of three of the four 
farmhouses on a tenancy basis for a further 6 months to 31st March 
2022; 
 

10.3. to note the expected repayment of the Loan in full before the  
31st March 2022. 

 
11. ANY OTHER ITEMS OF BUSINESS  

 
The Chair advised that there were no items of urgent business. 

 
________________________    __________________ 
CHAIR       DATE 
 

Page 10



Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 8
By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 14 of Part 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 as amended
by the Local Government (Access to Information)  (Variation) (Wales) Order 2007.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 TO SIGN AS A CORRECT RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE CABINET HELD ON THE 14TH MARCH 2022
	8 ASSET PURCHASE - PENDINE SLIPWAY CARPARK AND WINCH HOUSE
	Report


